
mental entities, such as regional school
and special purpose districts.

The manual is written to meet the par-
ticular needs of Massachusetts local
accounting officials. Its scope is not to
assist in the development of an ac-
counting system, but to address the op-
eration of an existing system. The man-
ual is intended for use by an accountant
whose background is not necessarily
in governmental accounting.

The update accomplishes three objec-
tives: an update for new laws, an up-
date for new accounting standards,
and a strict focus upon technical ac-
counting issues.

An Update for New Laws
Over the last 20 years, legislation cre-
ated new programs that required cre-
ation of new funds in the accounting
system. For example, the 1980s saw
the creation of enterprise funds, offset
receipts, the scholarship fund and pre-
liminary tax bills. The 1990s saw the
creation of revolving funds, teacher de-
ferrals, the Massachusetts Water Pollu-
tion Abatement Trust and the Law En-
forcement Trust fund. More recently,
the Community Preservation Act was
created.

An Update for New Accounting Standards
In 1984, the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board was established to
formalize generally accepted account-
ing principles for governmental enti-
ties. The Board has issued pronounce-
ments over time that have caused
changes to fund types (GASB 34), re-

In response to several national events
in the 1970s that stimulated the need for
more financial disclosure in the local
governmental sector, the Massachu-
setts Bureau of Accounts (Bureau), in
April 1980, commissioned a project to
develop a manual for a revised system
of Massachusetts governmental ac-
counting. The system, unveiled in July
1980, which became known as Uniform
Municipal Accounting System (UMAS),
was intended to bring the Massachu-
setts accounting system more closely in
conformity with generally accepted ac-
counting principles, an important com-
ponent in adequate financial reporting.

In the fall of 2002, the Bureau assem-
bled representatives from several pro-
fessional organizations (including the
Massachusetts Municipal Auditors’ and
Accountants’ Association and the Mass-
achusetts Society of Certified Public Ac-
countants) to review UMAS and suggest
revisions to accommodate changes in
governmental accounting over the last
20 years. During this process, it was
decided to maintain the basic system
of accounting, to update for changes in
law and accounting standards, and to
incorporate accounting guidance pro-
vided by the Bureau in various forms
into the manual.

On July 1, 2003, the Bureau unveiled
its updated UMAS accounting system.
Although the system, now known as the
Uniform Massachusetts Accounting
System, is still applicable to Massachu-
setts cities and towns, the Bureau ex-
pects over the next fiscal year to extend
the requirements to other local govern-

UMAS Manual Update Completed by Anthony Rassias and F. Ellis Fitzpatrick

Alan LeBovidge
Commissioner

Gerard D. Perry, Acting
Deputy Commissioner
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quired further disclosure of account ac-
tivity (GASB 12 and 18) and required
disclosure of investments at fair market
value (GASB 31).

A Strict Focus Upon Technical
Accounting Issues
The updated UMAS manual now fo-
cuses on technical accounting issues
rather than on overall government fi-
nancial management. Municipal finan-
cial issues such as budgeting or audit
procurement are not included. Other
publications of the Division of Local
Services address such subjects.

Contents
The manual details the Chart of Ac-
counts for assets, liabilities, fund equity,
revenues and expenditures. In addition,
the manual includes a series of entries
for recording the annual budget, and
recording the normal activities of the
general fund including adjusting and
closing entries. Subsequent chapters
are by fund type and provide illustrative
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Questions & Answers
by James Crowley
Q: Can a city or town borrow to do
minor repairs to roads?

A: No. M.G.L. Ch. 44 Sec. 7 Cl. 5 autho-
rizes a municipality to borrow for up to
10 years for the “construction” of roads
with different types of pavement, and for
widening or extending the roads. This
statute also authorizes borrowing for
the “original construction” of roads. The
term “construction” then would mean
more than road maintenance. M.G.L.
Ch. 44 Sec. 7 Cl. 5 and 6 authorize bor-
rowing for “resurfacing” only in connec-
tion with municipally owned and oper-
ated off-street parking lots. M.G.L. Ch.
44 Sec. 7 Cl. 6 permits municipal bor-
rowing for up to five years for the pur-
chase of paving material. In our view,
any borrowing for a road re-paving proj-
ect would only be permissible where
the work was substantial with a useful
life of at least 10 years.

Q: What are the rules regarding the en-
cumbrance of a school department ap-
propriation at the end of a fiscal year?

A: The rules are governed by the Ap-
peals Court decision of School Com-
mittee of Wilmington v. Town Account-
ant of Wilmington, 19 Mass. App. 964
(1985), and by the statutory changes
brought about by the Education Re-
form Act of 1993. M.G.L. Ch. 70 Sec.
11 now provides that if a school district
spends less than the amount required
to be appropriated for public education,
then the balance of the appropriation,
up to 5 percent of the amount required
to be appropriated, is carried forward
automatically to the ensuing fiscal year.
The school department does not need
purchase orders to carry forward this
amount. However, this statutory provi-
sion does not apply to communities
that have met their net school spend-

City & Town July/August 2003 Division of Local Services 2

From the Acting
Deputy Commissioner
What is considered
a “parcel” for the
purposes of property
taxation? In Mass-
achusetts, there is
no general definition

of the term parcel. Court cases de-
cided on this issue have held that
assessors must simply have a rea-
sonable basis for their determination
of what constitutes a parcel and if
they do, the assessment will be valid.

Assessors often define a parcel
according to the description found in
a deed or plan, but are not bound by
it. For example, a tract of contiguous
land described in a deed and owned
by the same person may be assessed
as a single parcel. If a plan divides
the tract into lots, it may be assessed
as separate parcels.

For certain kinds of property, the term
parcel is defined by statute. For ex-
ample, real estate subject to certain
restrictions, such as a conservation
restriction in perpetuity, must be as-
sessed as a separate parcel. Condo-
minium units are treated as individual
parcels for tax purposes even if the
same person owns adjoining units.
In a time-share unit, the owner has
the right to occupy one or more units
in the property during a number of
separated time periods over a period
of years. The tax is assessed on the
entire property as a single unit and
the bill is sent to, and paid by, the
managing entity.

In Massachusetts, assessors have
substantial discretion in determining
the unit of assessment, provided their
determination of the taxable parcel
is reasonable and otherwise lawful.

Gerard D. Perry
Acting Deputy Commissioner

ing obligation. The basic rule of en-
cumbrances, substantiated by pur-
chase orders, will apply.

In the Wilmington case, the issue be-
fore the court was whether the town
accountant could prohibit school pur-
chase orders for goods and supplies
after June 10 of the 1983 fiscal year.
The Appeals Court held that the town
accountant’s policy improperly limited
the school department’s fiscal auton-
omy. Although the school department
admitted that the ordered supplies
would be used in the upcoming fiscal
year (FY84), the Appeals Court did not
make a ruling on the legality of con-
tracts for services or supplies to be
performed totally in the next fiscal year.
Apparently, for this reason the Appeals
Court did not cite M.G.L. Ch. 71 Sec.
49A, which permits a school committee
to make commitments against the up-
coming fiscal year’s appropriation pro-
vided no payment is made prior to July
1. Instead, the Appeals Court ruled in
favor of the school committee and com-
pelled the town accountant to charge all
purchase orders submitted in FY83 to
the fiscal year 1983 budget. 

The Department has interpreted the
Wilmington decision to mean that a
school committee’s line item autonomy
does not allow the committee to spend
or encumber funds from the current fis-
cal year’s budget for services or sup-
plies that pertain unambiguously to a
subsequent fiscal year. In our view,
however, the school committee can
spend and encumber a current fiscal
year’s appropriation to pay for services
or goods that will be partly provided in
the current fiscal year but primarily used
in the subsequent fiscal year. No more
than 12 months’ worth of goods/serv-
ices should be charged to a particular
fiscal year’s budget. �

Legal in Our Opinion
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A municipality’s 2002 EQV is the sum
of the estimated fair market value of
each property class plus an estimate of
new growth, resulting in values indica-
tive of January 1, 2002. The Legislature
adopted these final values (in House
Document No. 2006) in March 2003.

Uses of EQVs
EQVs are often used as an indicator of
municipal wealth in local aid and as-
sessment formulas. They are used in
some distribution formulas so that
communities with lower property val-
ues receive proportionately more aid
than those with higher property values.
In some assessment formulas they are
used so that those with lower property
values assume proportionately less of
the cost than communities with higher
property values. The 2002 EQVs will
be used for the FY2004 and FY2005
Cherry Sheets programs. The local aid
receipt programs using EQV are: Lot-
tery, Public Libraries, Municipal Equal-
ization Grants, and Chapter 70. Lottery
aid, the second largest state aid pro-
gram, uses EQV per capita specifically
to determine how the annual lottery in-
creases are to be allocated among
communities.

The assessments using EQV are:
Boston’s Metropolitan Transit Districts,
the County Tax, Mosquito Control Pro-
jects and Air Pollution Control Districts.
Information on the calculation of all dis-
tributions and charges can be found in
the Division of Local Services Cherry
Sheet Manual or by visiting the DLS
website at www.mass.gov/dls. Finally,
EQV is used to compute municipal
debt limits. The debt limit for cities and
towns is now 5 percent of the equalized
valuation of the city or town. The limit
for cities had been 2.5 percent, but was
placed on a par with the limit for towns

2002 Equalized
Valuations
by Donna Demirai and David Wood
The Massachusetts Equalized Valua-
tions for 2002 reflect a 32.08 percent in-
crease from the 2000 values. This
Focus article discusses the most re-
cent study, its uses and results, and de-
scribes the historical trends in Equal-
ized Valuations (EQV).

Every even numbered year, the Com-
missioner of Revenue develops an esti-
mate of the fair cash value of all taxable
property in each city and town as of Jan-
uary 1, which is called the equalized val-
uation.1 Its purpose is to allow for com-
parisons of municipal property values
at one point in time, adjusting for differ-
ences in local assessing practices and
revaluation schedules. There are three
major uses for these equalized values:
the allocation of certain state aid, the
calculation of various state and county
assessments to municipalities, and the
determination of municipal debt limits.

Focus on Municipal Finance

EQV Methodology 
Assessed values as of January 1, 2001
(FY02) served as the starting point for
calculating the 2002 EQV. For residen-
tial property, the assessments of prop-
erties that sold in the preceding year
were compared to their sale prices. This
relationship of the value and the price
of arms-length sales were analyzed by
property use classes. A composite as-
sessment sales ratio was then deter-
mined for the entire class. For each
city and town, the FY02 total residential
assessed value was divided by this
ratio to estimate the fair market value of
all residential property. There were few
arms-length sales of commercial and
industrial properties. Therefore market
appraisals, direct income capitalization
information, other sales and economic
data were also used in estimating the
fair market value of these classes. In
municipalities with electric generating
plants, the value of the plant was
deemed to be at full and fair cash
value because of their appraisals or
tax agreements.

continued on page six
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tion, which included a period of very
rapid escalation between 1986 and
1990. In 1992, the first EQV decrease
(8.6 percent) reflected the beginning of
the market decline of the early nineties.
This downturn deepened in 1994. The
three percent increase in 1996 could
have indicated a slight market recovery.
However, when adjusted for inflation,
the 1996 EQV actually continued the
downward trend. The 1998 values, with
an increase of 8 percent, provided the
first signal of a true market turnaround,
both in actual and constant dollars. The
2000 values continued this trend. The
latest EQVs show that they have now
gone beyond the 1990 EQVs. Convert-
ing the current total of $641 billion to
1990 dollars, the adjusted value of $468
billion actually surpasses the 1990 total
of $428 billion (see Figure 1).

Between 2000 and 2002, increased
EQVs occurred across the state, al-
though the extent of the rise varied de-
pending on region. Only a few scattered
municipalities experienced a slight
value decrease in either the actual or
the per capita value. Table 1 lists each

in the “Municipal Relief Package” (Ch.
46 Sec. 32 of the Acts of 2003), which
was effective on July 31, 2003.

Either a city or town may seek approval
of a board comprised of the attorney
general, the state treasurer, the state
auditor and the director of accounts for
a limit up to 10 percent of the equal-
ized valuation.

Although many borrowing purposes
(e.g., water projects, landfill closure and
certain sewer projects) are outside of
this general debt limit, certain of these
have specific debt limitations also
based on EQV.

Findings
The 1990 EQV represented the high-
point of values until this study. The fluc-
tuations in statewide EQV values over
the years mirror the rise and fall of the
Commonwealth’s real estate market.
The figures, however, are subject to a
time-delay since the estimates are pri-
marily tied to real estate prices of two
years earlier. The EQVs peaked in 1990
at $428 billion, after a continuous in-
crease from the program’s 1976 incep-

municipality’s 2000
EQV, 2002 EQV, the
percentage change,
2002 EQV per cap-
ita (using 2000 pop-
ulation data), and
per capita rank. The
two-year changes
in EQVs are pre-
sented graphically
in the accompany-
ing state map (Fig-
ure 2), which allows
quick identification
of regional and eco-
nomic differences.
The greatest in-
creases occurred in
the eastern part of
the state, particu-
larly in the metropol-
itan Boston area,
Cape Cod and the
Islands. Except for
the resort commu-
nities in southern

Berkshire County, the least amount of
change was found west of Springfield.

A state map representing the EQV per
capita by community (Figure 3) shows
another view of the EQV program and
its results by coupling the municipality’s
EQV with population data. The analysis
reveals the highest EQVs occurring in
the resort areas of the state, particularly
in Cape Cod and the Islands and lower
Berkshire County. This is due to the
high value of residential property and
second homes in communities with a
relatively small year-round population.
The cluster of wealthy suburban towns
between Routes 495 and 128 and
along Route 95 also had high EQVs per
capita, coinciding with their large two-
year percentage increase in EQVs.
Conversely, the lowest EQVs per capita
are found in the older cities with large
urban populations such as Springfield,
New Bedford, and Worcester, despite
substantial increases in Lawrence, Lynn
and Brockton.

City & Town July/August 2003 Division of Local Services 6

2002 EQVs continued from page three

continued on page seven

Percent change

0 to 15% (79)
15% to 25% (81)
25% to 35% (122)
35% to 50% (51)
50% to 95% (18)

EQV Percent Change — 2000 to 2002

Figure 2
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Table 2 presents a detailed overview of
changes, highlighting geographic and
property class patterns. Across the
state, the major real property classes
rose at about the same rate. This is par-
ticularly noteworthy since in the 1980’s

escalating market, residential values
significantly outpaced the other classes.
Again regional differences in class shifts
can be seen. The least growth in com-
mercial and industrial values occurred
in the western counties. In Barnstable,

Dukes and Ply-
mouth counties, the
residential class in-
crease outstripped
the commercial and
industrial change.
The most dramatic
escalation of values
occurred in Martha’s
Vineyard (Dukes
County) and Nan-
tucket, especially in
the residential class.
This was responsi-
ble for much of the
change in the Cape
Cod area. The shift
in the Northeast was
characterized by a
marked increase in
both residential and
commercial-indus-
trial values in urban
metropolitan Boston
and its northwest
corridor between

Routes 495 and 128. Suffolk County,
consisting chiefly of Boston and Chel-
sea, increased 42.93 percent overall.
Values in Middlesex County rose 32.59
percent, led by large increases in the
cities of Cambridge and Somerville, as
well as in such towns as Boxborough,
Concord, Hopkinton and Weston.

The changes in EQV between 2000
and 2002 continue to demonstrate the
need for the local assessors to monitor
the market closely and annually update
values as needed. Massachusetts
General Laws states that assessors are
responsible for full and fair cash values
annually. It is especially important to in-
stitute an update program in areas with
lively and fluctuating real estate mar-
kets. Annual updates can help promote
greater property tax equity, both overall
and between classes. Also, they can
ameliorate the natural lag that occurs
between changes in the real estate
market and assessments. �

1. M.G.L. Ch. 58 Sec 9, 10, 10A, 10B and 10C.

2002 EQVs continued from page six

Per capita dollars (in thousands)

28 to 60 (51)
60 to 90 (109)
90 to 150 (110)
150 to 500 (61)
500 to 2,500 (10)

2002 EQV per Capita

Figure 3

2000–2002 EQV Percent Change
Commercial Personal EQV

Residential & Industrial Property overall
Region Counties % change % change % change % change

Northeast

Southeast

Cape &
Islands

Central

West

Totals

Essex,
Middlesex,

Suffolk

Bristol,
Norfolk,

Plymouth

Barnstable,
Dukes,

Nantucket

Worcester

Berkshire,
Franklin,

Hampden,
Hampshire

30.0%

20.6%

32.1%

17.3%

8.5%

25.3%

35.9%

31.1%

53.5%

26.9%

13.8%

33.9%

12.4%

13.3%

19.9%

21.9%

2.9%

12.9%

34.4%

29.1%

51.4%

25.6%

12.5%

32.1%

Table 2
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Ch. 40B Task Force Findings
On June 12, 2003, the Governor un-
veiled a package of comprehensive re-
forms to the state’s affordable housing
law — commonly known as Chapter
40B — designed to give cities and
towns throughout the Commonwealth
more control over the planning and de-
velopment process in their communities.

In February, the Governor established
the Chapter 40B Task Force, comprised
of members of the Legislature, state
housing officials, municipal and regional
officials and stakeholders representing
development and environmental inter-
ests. The task force was charged with
evaluating the statute and its impact to
ensure that the need to create afford-
able housing is balanced appropriately
with other municipal concerns.

Chapter 40B was enacted in 1969 to
encourage cities and towns to build
more affordable homes in Massachu-
setts. Under the law, if a community
has less than 10 percent of its perma-
nent housing stock affordable to low-
and moderate-income families, certain
zoning regulations can be overridden
provided that 25 percent of a proposed
development includes affordable units.
In spite of 15 regulatory changes by
the state Department of Housing and
Community Development to improve
the law over the last two years, only 31
of the Commonwealth’s 351 cities and
towns currently comply with the 10 per-
cent threshold.

The task force recommendations re-
spond to concerns raised by communi-
ties and address issues pertaining to:

• Promoting equity by changing the
way homeownership units are counted;

• Guiding how and where homes are
developed by introducing smart growth
principles into 40B and density guide-
lines for homeownership develop-

ments, and empowering site approval
authorities to reject developments that
are inappropriate;

• Addressing local capacity by limiting
the number of units a community
has to review at one time and perma-
nently fund consultants to work with
municipalities;

• Planning and reasonable growth by
establishing planned production goals
that reward communities with time-off;

• Improving the 40B process by insert-
ing more information, expertise and
communication at the beginning of the
process to dispel misinformation and
promote cooperation; and

• Reforming the Housing Appeals
Committee (HAC) by recommending
that it undergo procedural reform. This
change will expedite the permitting
and building of a significant number of
housing units while dismissing proj-
ects, which are not consistent with
local need.

In addition, the proposed changes to
40B supplement the regulatory changes
made over the past two years, including:

• Limiting project size;

• Enhancing project notification for
cities and towns;

• Allowing for a cooling off period to
eliminate using 40B as a threat; 

• Including accessory apartments and
Department of Mental Retardation/De-
partment of Mental Health units to
count on the subsidized housing inven-
tory; and

• Placing reasonable controls on pro-
jects funded through non-governmental
agencies (including the Federal Home
Loan Bank’s New England Fund).

A full copy of the report is available on-
line at www.mass.gov/dhcd.

2003 Municipal Law
Seminars
The Division of Local Services’ legal
staff will offer the seminar “What’s New
in Municipal Law” Friday, September
26, 2003, at the Best Western Hotel in
West Springfield and Friday, October 3,
2003, at Lantana in Randolph. Presen-
tations will include new legislation and
recent court decisions pertaining to
local government.

The general session in the morning will
be conducted by Daniel J. Murphy,
Chief of the Property Tax Bureau; Gary
Blau; Kathleen Colleary; James Crow-
ley; and Christopher Hinchey.

The afternoon session will consist of
three simultaneous workshops. Work-
shop A will focus on assessing and col-
lecting issues relating to property taxes,
excises and the Chapter 61, 61A and
61B classifications. Workshop B will ex-
amine a variety of current topics relat-
ing to municipal accounting, special
funds and other finance issues. Work-
shop C will present information and en-
courage a dialogue on current person-
nel and related workforce issues, and
should be of interest to local officials.

To the extent pertinent, information in
new municipal relief legislation will be
incorporated into these programs and
attendant materials.

As of July 1, 2003, registration bulletins
for this seminar and other courses and
seminars will no longer be mailed. A
registration bulletin for this seminar is
available on the DLS website at www.
mass.gov/dls/PUBL/BULL/2003/2003_
15B.pdf. �

DLS Update

http://www.mass.gov/dhcd
http://www.mass.gov/dls/PUBL/BULL/2003/2003_15B.pdf
http://www.mass.gov/dls/PUBL/BULL/2003/2003_15B.pdf
http://www.mass.gov/dls/PUBL/BULL/2003/2003_15B.pdf


journal entries for various programs
within that fund type. For example, the
special revenue fund chapter details
accounting entries for grants, revolving
funds, receipts reserved for appropria-
tion, offset receipts funds, and gifts and
donations. One chapter is devoted to an
explanation of how free cash is calcu-
lated. Finally, a chapter is devoted to the
general fixed asset account group and
the general long-term obligation ac-
count group. Although these two groups
were eliminated by GASB 34, the man-
ual retained them for the accountant to
have an adequate audit trail for fixed
assets necessary to be disclosed on
the government-wide statements.

Distribution
The manual is available on the Division
of Local Services website at www.mass.
gov/dls/publ/misc/umas.pdf. Revisions
will be distributed on the DLS website
subscription service for downloading. �
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Personal Income, Wage and Salary
Disbursements
Bureau of Economic Analysis:
http://www.bea.doc.gov

Existing Home Sales, Median Sales
Prices of Existing Homes
National Association of Realtors:
http://www.realtor.org

Electricity Sales
Energy Information Administration:
http://www.eia.doe.gov

Indicators Website
Federal Reserve Bank of Boston:
http://www.bos.frb.org/economic/neei/
neei.htm �

Bank of Boston website at www.bos.
frb.org. Indicators provides current
and historical economic data for the
New England states, large metropolitan
areas in the region, New England as a
whole, and the United States.

Subscriptions to Indicators are free. You
can subscribe online to this and other
publications issued by the Federal Re-
serve Bank of Boston via links provided
on its website.

Employment, Unemployment, Hours,
Earnings, Consumer Prices
Bureau of Labor Statistics:
http://stats.bls.gov

Construction Contracts
F. W. Dodge: http://www.dodge.
construction.com/Analytics/

Initial Claims for Unemployment
Insurance
U.S. Department of Labor, Employment
and Training Administration:
http://workforcesecurity.doleta.gov

Housing Permits, State Tax Collections
Bureau of the Census: 
http://www.census.gov

Help Wanted Index, Consumer
Confidence
The Conference Board, Inc.:
http://www.conference-board.org

Merchandise Exports
Massachusetts Institute for Social and
Economic Research:
http://www1.miser.umass.edu/trade/ 

Massachusetts Consumer Confidence
Mass Insight/MassDevelopment
Project: http://www.massinsight.com

Repeat-Sales Home Prices
Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac:
http://www.freddiemac.com

Classification Workshop
Updated
The online Classification Workshop tu-
torial has just been updated. Previously,
this tutorial was incompatible with Win-
dows 2000 operating systems. Now,
users with Windows 2000 (or higher or
lower versions) can take advantage of
this online workshop. It is available on
the Division of Local Services’ website
(www.mass.gov/dls) under “Training
and Seminars.”

Completion of this tutorial fulfills asses-
sors’ and certain assistant assessors’
obligation to attend a Classification
Workshop, without leaving the home or
office. According to Bureau of Local As-
sessment supervisor Regina McArdle,
“it also serves as a refresher for asses-
sors who are preparing for the annual
classification hearing and can be used
to familiarize new town officials with the
classification processes.”

Upon completion of the tutorial, the
program will print a Certificate of Com-
pletion. The program features colorful
graphics and animation and each sec-
tion contains examples and hands-on
exercises. The Classification Workshop
tutorial also contains an updated glos-
sary of terms on issues such as Propo-
sition 21⁄2, tax levies and overrides, and
the certification process.

New England Economic
Information
The following websites contain eco-
nomic data that pertains to the six New
England states.

When possible, the links go directly to
the subdirectory/page of the target site
containing the specific data. This infor-
mation, as well as the monthly publica-
tion New England Economic Indicators,
is available on the Federal Reserve

DLS Update

UMAS Manual continued from page one
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DLS Profile: BOA Field Representatives
Though Terry Williams and Maura O’Neil are rela-
tive newcomers to the Bureau of Accounts, they
have established solid working relationships with the
communities they assist. Terry works in the Division’s
Springfield office and works with communities in
Franklin and Hampshire counties. Maura works with
communities north of Boston as well as those sur-
rounding the Hub.

Terry is a lifelong resident of Dalton. Prior to working
for the Division, he held a financial position with a
company in western Massachusetts that manufac-
tures paper-making machinery. He has served as a
Dalton Finance Committee member for 16 years and
has co-hosted a local call-in program on cable tele-
vision for about 10 years. A graduate of Ithaca Col-
lege, Terry holds a bachelor’s degree in business
administration.

Mike Kociela, town accountant in Greenfield, said
he was initially impressed with Terry’s “enthusiasm”
for his work. He also said that “Terry is always on top
of things here. He keeps his own records on Green-
field and does his own analyses.”

Prior to coming to the Bureau of Accounts, Maura
worked for the Department of Revenue as a sales/
use tax auditor and an audit manager in the Special Investigations unit. A native
of Lowell, she attended the University of Lowell (now UMass Lowell) and holds a
bachelor’s degree in business management.

In West Newbury, town accountant Susan Yaskell says the town “considers itself
very fortunate to work with Maura. She is always willing to visit the town to expedite
the submission of required documents. Maura is very competent and always pro-
fessional in her work.” �

City &Town
City &Town is published by the Massachusetts Depart-
ment of Revenue’s Division of Local Services (DLS) 
and is designed to address matters of interest to local
officials.

Joan E. Grourke, Editor

To obtain information or publications, contact the
Division of Local Services via:
• website: www.mass.gov/dls
• telephone: (617) 626-2300
• mail: PO Box 55490, Boston, MA 02205-5490

DLS Employment Opportunity
The Division of Local Services is seek-
ing an attorney to work in the Property
Tax Bureau. This Bureau provides legal
oversight and assistance with respect
to local property taxation and municipal
finance to cities, town and districts. A
full description of this employment op-
portunity is available on the Internet at
http://ceo.hrd.state.ma.us/ceo.nsf/5c3
369073f86873085256a4e006606cc/6e
bbc3739557f02f85256d640067fc7c?O
penDocument. The deadline for submit-
ting applications is August 26, 2003. �Terry Williams

Maura O’Neil

http://ceo.hrd.state.ma.us/ceo.nsf/5c3369073f86873085256a4e006606cc/6ebbc3739557f02f85256d640067fc7c?OpenDocument.
http://ceo.hrd.state.ma.us/ceo.nsf/5c3369073f86873085256a4e006606cc/6ebbc3739557f02f85256d640067fc7c?OpenDocument.

